
 

 
 
 
Having trouble reading this? Please call 0115 901 3844 if you need it in large print, audio 

or another format. 

 
 

 

 

Agenda 

Civic Centre,  
Arnot Hill Park,  

Arnold, 
Nottinghamshire,  

NG5 6LU 
 

 

 

Environment and Licensing 

Committee 
 

 

 

Date: Tuesday 18 April 2023 

Time: 4.15 pm 

Place: Council Chamber 

 
For any further information please contact:  

Democratic Services 

committees@gedling.gov.uk 

0115 901 3844 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 
 

Environment and Licensing Committee 
 
Membership 
 
 
Chair Councillor Marje Paling 
  

Vice-Chair Councillor Nicki Brooks 

 
Councillor Pat Bosworth 
Councillor Rachael Ellis 
Councillor Des Gibbons 
Councillor Julie Najuk 
Councillor Alex Scroggie 
Councillor Martin Smith 
Councillor Sam Smith 
Councillor Clive Towsey-Hinton 
Councillor Paul Wilkinson 

 
 

 
WEBCASTING NOTICE 

 
Please note that this meeting will be live streamed on the Council's YouTube 
channel and via the website (www.gedling.gov.uk). At the start of the meeting 

the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being broadcast. 
 

You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data 
Protection Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance 

with the Council’s published policy. 
 

For more information about how your personal data is collected and used please 
view our privacy notice https://www.gedling.gov.uk/elections-privacy/  

 
 

http://www.gedling.gov.uk/
https://www.gedling.gov.uk/elections-privacy/


 

 

AGENDA 
 

Page 

 

1   Apologies for Absence and Substitutions.  

2   To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 21 
March 2023. 

5 - 7 

3   Declaration of Interests.  

4   Introduction of financial penalties for contraventions of the Clean Air 
Act 1993 Section 19A relating to emissions of smoke in a smoke 
control area. 

9 - 15 

 Report of Head of Environment - Melvyn Cryer  

5   Any other item which the Chair considers urgent.  

6   Exclusion of the Press and Public.  

 To move that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public and press be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
ensuing report on the grounds that the report involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraph 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972. 

 

7   Application for a One Year Hackney Carriage / Private Hire Drivers 
Licence And an Application for a One Year Private Hire Operators 
Licence - JR 

17 - 73 

 Report of Head of Environment - Melvyn Cryer  

8   Application for a One Year Hackney Carriage / Private Hire Drivers 
Licence - MRQ 

75 - 82 

 Report of Head of Environment - Melvyn Cryer  

9   Application for a One Year Hackney Carriage / private Hire Drivers 
Licence - KM 

83 - 85 

 Report of Head of Environment - Melvyn Cryer  



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES 
ENVIRONMENT AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
Tuesday 21 March 2023 

 
Councillor Marje Paling (Chair) 

 
Present: Councillor Nicki Brooks 

Councillor Pat Bosworth 
Councillor Rachael Ellis 
Councillor Des Gibbons 
Councillor Julie Najuk 

Councillor Alex Scroggie 
Councillor Sam Smith 
Councillor Clive Towsey-Hinton 
Councillor Paul Wilkinson 

 

Absent: Councillor Martin Smith 

Officers in 
Attendance: 

M Hill, C Allcock, M Cryer, B Hopewell, K Nealon and S Palmer 

 
30    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS.  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Martin Smith. 
 
 

31    TO APPROVE, AS A CORRECT RECORD, THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING HELD ON 7 MARCH 2023.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the above meeting, having been circulated, be 
approved as a correct record. 
 

32    DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.  
 
None. 
 

33    PROPOSED GENERAL LICENSING FEES FOR 2023/24  
 
The Head of Environment introduced a report, which had been circulated 
in advance of the meeting, seeking approval of the proposed licensing 
fees for 2023/24 as shown at appendix 1 to the report. 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 
Approve the general licensing fees detailed at appendix 1 to the report to 
come into force on 1st April 2023. 
 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 

34    PROPOSED TAXI LICENSING FEES FOR 2023/24  
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Environment, which 
had been circulated in advance of the meeting, seeking approval of the 
proposed increase of fees for taxi driver, operator and vehicle licences 
for 2023/24 as shown at appendix 1, subject to consideration of the one 
objection received by the council, detailed at appendix 2. 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 
Approve the fees for taxi driver, operators and vehicle licences as 
detailed at appendix 1 for 2023/24 with effect from 1 April 2023. 
 

35    RATES OF FARES  
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Environment, which 
had been circulated in advance of the meeting, asking Members to make 
changes and amendments to the current Hackney Carriage Rates of 
Fares. 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 

1) Not approve the proposed changes to the times in which a 25% 
surcharge will be applied between 23:00 and 06:00 hours, as set out in 
appendix A to the report. 

 
2) Members retain the current times the 25% surcharge apply – additional 

fare for each hiring commencing between 00:01 hours and 06:00 hour; 

 
3) Approve all the other proposed Rates of Fares detailed below 

 
Current  Proposed 

If the whole distance does not 
exceed 1 mile for the whole 
distance 

£3.50  £3.90  

If the distance exceeds 1 mile 
for the first mile 

£3.50  £3.90  

For each subsequent 80 yards 
or part thereof 

10p  10p For each subsequent 70 
yards 

Waiting time – for each period 
of 20 seconds 

10p  10p Waiting time – for each 
period of 15 seconds 

Surcharges     

Additional fare for each hiring 
commencing between 00:01 
hours and 6.00 

25%  25%  

Additional fare for each hiring 
commencing on a Bank Holiday 

25%  25%  

Additional fare for each hiring 
commencing between 18:00 
hours 24 December and 6:00 
hours on 27 December  

50%  50%  

Additional fare for each hiring 
commencing between 18:00 
hours 31 December and 6:00 

50%  50%  

Page 6



 

hours on 2 January 

For the carriage of animals 
(Guide Dogs, Hearing Dogs 
and Assistance Dogs exempt) 

£2  £3  

Soiling Charge £50  £50  

 
4) Approve the Rates of Fares detailed above are advertised in 

accordance with Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976 Section 65 for a minimum period of 14 days. 

 
5) Approve that the Director. In consultation with the Chair of the 

Environment & Licensing Committee be authorised to agree the final 
Rates of Fares, after taking into account any comments received during 
the consultation period; and 

 
6) Members approve the final rates of Fares become effective from 1st 

May 2023. 

 
36    ANY OTHER ITEM WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT.  

 
None. 
 
 
 

The meeting finished at 4.40 pm 
 
 

 
 

Signed by Chair:    
Date:   

  

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Report to Environment and Licensing Committee 
 
Subject: Introduction of financial penalties for contraventions of the Clean Air Act 

1993 Section 19A relating to emissions of smoke in a smoke control 
area. 

Date: 7th March 2023 

Author: Head of Environment 

Wards Affected 

All wards 

Purpose 

To seek approval for the use of financial penalties for offences under section 19A of 
the Clean Air Act 1993 (as inserted by Section 73 of the Environment Act 2021) and 
to set the monetary level for financial penalties which may be issued for offences 
under Section 19A of the Clean Air Act 1993 relating to emissions of smoke in a 
smoke control area. 

Key Decision 

Not a key decision 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT Members: 

1) Approve the use of financial penalties for smoke control offences in a 
 smoke control area, under Section 19A of the Clean Air Act 1993. 

2) Sets the level of the financial penalties under Section 19A of the 
 Clean Air Act at £175. 

3) Approves the increase of the financial penalties to £300 (the maximum 
 value) for persistent/repeat offenders. 

4) Delegate authority to the Corporate Director to authorise relevant 
 officers or persons to  issue financial penalties in respect of offences, 
 and to determine objections in accordance with Section 19A of the 
 Clean Air Act 1993 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



1 Background 

1.1 The Clean Air Act 1993 (CAA) is the primary regulatory legislation for smaller 
burning plant that fall outside the Environmental Permitting system. 

1.2 Local authorities are the regulating body for the conditions of the Act. The 
most commonly known parts of the Act are those that allow LAs to set up 
Smoke Control Areas (Section 18), where domestic premises are committing 
an offence if they emit smoke unless using an approved smokeless fuel, or 
an exempt (approved) appliance; in other words: 

Open fires in Smoke Control Areas 

Any fuel burned on an open fire in a Smoke Control Area must be an 
“authorised fuel”. This is because you are only allowed to burn smokeless 
coals or anthracite. 

Woodburning stoves in Smoke Control Areas 

Any stove installed in a Smoke Control Area must legally be an “exempted 
appliance”, often referred to as Defra EXEMPT. 

1.3 Gedling Borough has 41 Smoke Control Areas (SCA) designated by Orders 
dating back to between 1962 and 1994. 

1.4 The Public Protection Team receives complaints from time to time regarding 
smoke from residential chimneys, both in and outside the borough’s SCAs. 

1.5 Enforcement of the CAA has always been hampered by the need for a 
criminal standard of proof coupled with no powers of entry. In effect Officers 
needed to be able to witness the act of putting the fuel on the fire in order to 
have the necessary evidence to prosecute. 

1.6 The Environment Act 2021 amends the CAA and the current SCA framework, 
replacing the criminal offence with a civil penalty regime. This means LAs 
have powers to issue financial penalties for smoke emissions under the civil 
regime but also have an alternative option to pursue persistent offenders 
under a criminal regime through nuisance legislation (which has not been 
possible prior to the amendments made by the 2021 Act).  

1.7 The Act enables Local Authorities in England to issue fines (£175 minimum, 
up to £300) for smoke emissions in Smoke Control Areas. DEFRA expect 
LAs to use fines at the higher end of the scale for repeat offenders. 

 

 

Page 10



1.8 In order to help educate residents within the borough the Council will look to 
give a warning to households in the first instance. If further offending is 
identified the process for issuing a financial penalty is to issue a notice of 
intent. This notice provides details of the offence, informs the recipient of the 
Councils intention to issue a financial penalty and provides details about that 
person’s right to object to the imposition of the penalty.  

A person to whom a notice of intent is given then has a period of 28 days to 
object to the notice and provide supporting any evidence. The Clean Air Act 
sets out four grounds for making an objection which are; 
 

a) that there was no emission of smoke from the chimney on the occasion 
specified in the notice of intent; 

b) that the chimney was not a chimney to which a smoke control order 
applied on the occasion specified in the notice of intent; 

c) that the person to whom the notice of intent was given was not a 
person liable in relation to the chimney on the occasion specified in the 
notice of intent; 

d) that there are other compelling reasons why the financial penalty 
should not be imposed. 

1.9 Objections will be made to the Community Protection Manager for 
consideration.  

After the expiry of the 28 objection period the Council has 56 days to consider 
any objections and make a decision whether or not to impose the financial 
penalty. The Council must notify the individual of its decision and where the 
decision is to impose the penalty the Council must serve a final notice setting 
out the amount of the penalty, reasons for imposing the penalty, payment 
information and the individual’s right to appeal.  See process diagram at 
Appendix A.  

Appeals against a final notice are made to the First-tier Tribunal. The First tier 
Tribunal has the power to quash the final notice, confirm the final notice vary 
the final notice by reducing the amount of the penalty or refer back to the 
Council for a further decision on the final notice.  

Financial penalties are recoverable as a civil debt, if a financial penalty is not 
paid it will be referred to the Council’s revenues department to commence 
debt recovery proceedings.  

 

 

 

Page 11



2 Proposal 

THAT Members: 

2.1 Approves the use of financial penalties for smoke control offences in a smoke 
control area, under Section 19A of the Clean Air Act 1993. 

2.2 Sets the level of the financial penalty under Section 19A of the Clean Air Act 
at £175. 

2.3 Approves the increase of the financial penalty to £300 (the maximum value) 
for persistent/repeat offenders. 

2.4 Delegated authority be given to the Corporate Director to authorise relevant 
officers or persons to issue financial penalties in respect of offences, and to 
determine objections in accordance with Section 19A of the Clean Air Act 
1993. 

3 Alternative Options 

3.1 Not to approve the use of these powers and not to authorise officers or 
appropriate persons to issue financial penalties. However this will mean that 
the Council will not be able to use the new methods of enforcement and will 
make it difficult to identify and prosecute offenders with the borough.   

3.2 Set fee of the financial penalty at different amount. It is felt that the minimum 
fine of £175 is a sufficient penalty to deter most households from infringing 
the provisions of the Clean Air Act. Any households who continually disregard 
the requirements will be fined at the maximum £300.   

3.3 Not to delegate authority to the Corporate Director. However this will mean 
that Members will have to approve each individual officer to issue financial 
penalties in addition to this any objects to financial penalties will need to be 
referred back to committee. As there are statutory timeframes for considering 
objections it may be difficult to ensure that every case is dealt with within time 
if the timeframes do not coincide with the Committee rota.  

4 Financial Implications 

4.1 Some revenue may be received from payment of financial penalties at this 
stage it is anticipated that most complaints can be resolved without the need 
for financial penalties. It is though that perhaps in the region of £500-£1000 
may be received per annum. 

4.2 Implementation will be met by existing staff resources in Public Protection. 

 

Page 12



5 Legal Implications 

5.1 The process set out by Section 19A and Schedule 1A of the Clean Air Act 
1993 is a civil remedy for enforcing smoke control. It does not create a 
criminal offence and there is no ability to prosecute individuals. Instead 
financial penalties are a debt owed to the Council. Unpaid debts are 
recovered by the Council’s Revenues department who will commence debt 
recovery proceedings against those who do not pay.  

5.2 The minimum and maximum penalty amount and the process for issuing 
finical penalties are set out in Schedule 1A of the Clean Airs Act 1993 the 
Council do not have discretion to deviate from this process unless 
Regulations are made by the Secretary of State. At present no such 
regulations have been made.  

6 Equalities Implications 

6.1 This report is unlikely to affect any specific protected characteristic groups in 
the Equalities Act. However fuel poor households could be affected if using 
an open fire or burning cheap wood as a source of heating as opposed to 
more expensive electricity, gas or oil.  

The Environmental Health and Technical Officers regulating this function 
have access to the information to refer residents for home energy efficiency 
and heating measures to mitigate any detrimental impacts on fuel poor 
households. It is considered that the environmental, air quality, and health 
benefits of implementing this function outweigh any detrimental effects for fuel 
poor households. 

7 Carbon Reduction/Environmental Sustainability Implications 

7.1 Implementation of the new powers supports measures in the Air Quality 
Action Plan, Nottinghamshire Air Quality Strategy and also supports the 
Councils Climate Change Net Zero work. 

8 Appendices 

8.1 Appendix A – Flow Diagram of  Process 

9 Background Papers 

9.1 None 

10 Reasons for Recommendations 

10.1 Enabling these powers will assist in reducing pollution, and dealing with 
complaints from residents. 

Page 13



 

Statutory Officer approval 
 
Approved by:  
Date:  
On behalf of the Chief Financial Officer 
 
Approved by:  
Date:  
On behalf of the Monitoring Officer 
 

 

Page 14



Appendix A – Flow Diagram of Process 
 
 

 

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 17

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 75

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 83

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 21 March 2023.
	4 Introduction of financial penalties for contraventions of the Clean Air Act 1993 Section 19A relating to emissions of smoke in a smoke control area.
	7 Application for a One Year Hackney Carriage / Private Hire Drivers Licence And an Application for a One Year Private Hire Operators Licence - JR
	APPENDIX A. Investigation report of Jim BROUGH. Licensing Enforcement Officer..docx
	APPENDIX B. PHV Vehicle Licence application forms..docx
	APPENDIX C. Future Services UK listing on FindTransfers.com.pdf
	APPENDIX D. Booking records from FindTransfers for Future Services UK.docx
	APPENDIX E. Statement of Abigail ROWSE.doc
	APPENDIX F. Business Card.pdf
	APPENDIX G. TEXT messages.docx
	APPENDIX H. Facebook Page Print.pdf
	APPENDIX I. Officer Summary of interview under caution.docx
	APPENDIX J. Insurance Policy May 22 to May 23.docx
	APPENDIX K. Written submission Mr RITCHIE..pdf

	8 Application for a One Year Hackney Carriage / Private Hire Drivers Licence - MRQ
	Appendix A.doc

	9 Application for a One Year Hackney Carriage / private Hire Drivers Licence - KM

